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City of Philadelphia 
Procurement Department 

 

 

Addendum No. 1           Date: December 1, 2011 

Concession RFP # C-104-12 

Deadline for Submitting Proposals: 10:00 A.M., local time, December 

16, 2011  

 

NOTICE 

 
It is the sole responsibility of the Respondent to ensure it has received all addenda to the 

RFP.  The Procurement Commissioner may, in the Commissioner’s sole discretion, reject 

any Proposal for which not all the addenda have been executed and returned. 

 

_____________________________________________________________ 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR 

 

The Operation and Management of Bicycle 

Rental Stations in the Fairmount Park System 

 

RFP # C-104-12 
 

IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS 

 

Except as expressly amended by this Addendum No. 1, the RFP is unchanged. Except as 

otherwise defined in this Addendum No. 1, capitalized words and phrases used in this 

Addendum No. 1 have the meanings assigned to them in the RFP.   

 
Part 1 

 

 
1.1 The City believes that the information and data in this Addendum No. 1 is 

reliable, but the City does not represent or warrant that the information or data is 

accurate.  Potential Respondents are encouraged to conduct their own 

investigations into any matter of concern to them about the Licensed Premises, 

the RFP, the Concession Agreement, their Proposal, or this Addendum No. 1. 
 

Part 2 
 

2.1  In accordance with the RFP, the City of Philadelphia conducted a mandatory Pre-

Proposal Meeting and Tour on November 10, 2011.  At the meeting, potential 
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Respondents asked questions about the RFP.  After the Pre-Proposal Meeting and Tour, 

some potential Respondents submitted additional questions in writing to the City.  This 

Addendum No. 1 incorporates into the RFP the questions from the Pre-Proposal Meeting 

and Tour, questions submitted to the City in writing after the meeting and tour, and the 

City’s written answer to each of those questions, as set forth below. 

 

Question No. 1:  Does the City have reports on the revenue or profits from the previous 

concessionaire’s bicycle rental operation at Lloyd Hall? 

 

City Answer:  No.  The previous concessionaire did not provide reports on 

revenues or profits from the Lloyd Hall bicycle rental operation, and therefore the 

City does not have such information.  

 

Question No. 2: Can the City provide the concession fee arrangement between the City 

and the previous concessionaire at Lloyd Hall? 
 

City Answer:  The previous concessionaire agreed to pay the City $201 each 

month, plus $3.00 per rental, and 8% of its net income (i.e. its income after it paid 

all its expenses) per month from its operation of the concession.  

 

Question No. 3:  Beside the bicycle rental service, what other services is the 

Concessionaire permitted to operate for this Concession? 

 

City Answer:  In addition to the bicycle rental service, the Concessionaire may 

operate bicycle tours and bicycle maintenance services for non-bicycle rental 

patrons.  The Concessionaire may also provide other services, such as segway 

rentals and tours, but those services require the City’s prior approval, which may 

include restrictions.  Please see Section 3.26.2 of the RFP for additional 

information.  

 

The City has issued permits to two segway rental and tour operators to provide 

tours that include the Fairmount Park locations listed below.  The operators are 

DeTours, LTD. and I-Glide Tours and Rentals, LLC.  DeTours base of operations 

is located in the Old City neighborhood of Philadelphia; I-Glide’s base of 

operations is located in the Eakins Oval parking lot across from the Philadelphia 

Museum of Art.  The permits of both operators are effective through December 

31, 2011, and the City has the right to extend each permit annually.  

 

Fairmount Park Segway Tour Sites: 

 

JFK Plaza 

Benjamin Franklin Parkway 

Philadelphia Museum of Art area (in front and behind the museum) 

Schuylkill Banks 

Rittenhouse Square 
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Question No. 4:  Will the Concessionaire be required to pay a “tour fee” for providing 

tours through the Fairmount Park System? 

 

City Answer:  No, the Concessionaire is not obligated to pay a “tour fee” for 

providing tours through the Fairmount Park System.  The Concession Fee is the 

only fee the Concessionaire is required to pay.  

 

Question No. 5:  Permits are required for cyclists riding in the Wissahickon Valley. Will 

the City require the Concessionaire to purchase permits for each rental patron? 
 

City Answer:  No.   

 

Question No. 6:  Does the City require tour guides to be certified to lead tours?  

 

City Answer:  Section 9-214 of the Philadelphia Code requires that a tour guide 

operating for compensation in the Center City Tourist Area obtain certification.  

Although not every bicycle rental location may be in the Center City Tourist Area 

as defined in Section 9-214, the Concessionaire shall obtain a tour guide 

certification before the Concessionaire operates bicycle tours in any portion the 

Center City Tourist Area.  The City recommends that each potential Respondent 

confer with private legal counsel about Section 9-214 and the requirements for 

obtaining tour guide certification under that provision.   

 

Question No. 7:  Will the City permit the Concessionaire to install non-permanent, 

overnight storage containers at the bicycle rental locations?  If so, are there specifications 

for the appearance of the storage containers?  
 

City Answer:  The Concessionaire may install a non-permanent storage structure 

for overnight storage only in the parking lot adjacent to the bicycle rental station 

at Lloyd Hall.  Please see Section 2.3.3.4 and Appendix 7 of the RFP for 

additional information.  

 

The Concessionaire may not install a non-permanent storage structure for 

overnight storage at JFK Plaza or Three Parkway Plaza.  The City, however, will 

work with the Concessionaire to identify off-site storage to accommodate the 

storage needs for either of those locations, if any.  Please see Section 3.7 of the 

RFP for additional information.  

 

The Concessionaire shall install storage structures with color(s) that are 

appropriate (i.e. that blend in with the park setting), do not have any 

advertisements on them, and do not block pedestrian or vehicular traffic.    

 

Question No. 8:  Can the City provide the most recent annual tourism numbers and a 

five-year trend? 
 

City Answer:  Exhibit A.1 of this Addendum No.1 includes a chart that 

documents domestic visits to Greater Philadelphia by market segment from 1997-
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2010.  The chart provided in Exhibit A.1 was produced by the Greater 

Philadelphia Tourism Marketing Corporation (“GPTMC”).  For additional 

information about domestic visits to Philadelphia, please visit GPTMC’s research 

and report site at http://www.visitphilly.com/research/.  A Respondent may also 

contact Laura Maikisch, Research Analyst for GTPMC, at laura@gptmc.com for 

more information. 

 

Exhibit A.2 of this Addendum No.1 includes several charts that document 

international visits to Greater Philadelphia.  The charts provided in Exhibit A.2 

were produced by the Philadelphia Convention & Visitors Bureau (“PCVB”).  

For additional information about international visits to Philadelphia, please visit 

PCVB’s facts and research site at http://www.philadelphiausa.travel/about-

us/philadelphia-facts-research.  Respondents may also contact Kathleen Titus, 

Executive Director of Tourism for PCVB, at kathleen@pcvb.org for more 

information. 

 

Question No. 9:  Will the City make the sign-in sheet for the Pre-Proposal Meeting 

available for public review? 

 

City Answer:  Yes.  A list of attendees who signed the sign-in sheet at the Pre-

Proposal Meeting is set forth in Exhibit A.3 of this Addendum No.1.  If a 

Respondent has difficulty reading the information in Exhibit A.3, the Respondent 

may contact the Project Manager, Marc Wilken, for clarification at 215-683-0232 

or marc.wilken@phila.gov. 

 

Question No. 10:  Will the City permit the Concessionaire to operate the Concession for 

a 12-month period? 
 

City Answer:  If the Concessionaire believes there is sufficient business 

throughout the year to support the Concession, then the Concessionaire may 

operate the Concession year-round.  
 

Question No. 11: What control does the Department of Parks and Recreation have over 

the parking lot adjacent to Lloyd Hall?  Is it possible for someone to park a truck in the 

parking lot and establish a competing bicycle rental program? 

 

City Answer:  The Department of Parks and Recreation has jurisdiction over the 

parking lot adjacent to Lloyd Hall.  The Department of Parks and Recreation will prohibit 

any competing bicycle rental business from operating in that parking lot.  

 

Question No. 12:  Will the City permit a rental shed to be located adjacent Lloyd Hall? 
 

City Answer:  Yes, the Concessionaire may place a rental shed next to Lloyd 

Hall.  The City, however, prefers that the Concessionaire use a more portable 

structure at Lloyd Hall, and the City will consider Proposals with this preference 

in mind.  

http://www.visitphilly.com/research/
mailto:laura@gptmc.com
http://www.philadelphiausa.travel/about-us/philadelphia-facts-research
http://www.philadelphiausa.travel/about-us/philadelphia-facts-research
mailto:kathleen@pcvb.org
mailto:marc.wilken@phila.gov
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Question No. 13:  Will the City provide the Concessionaire with access to electrical 

power at the bicycle rental locations?  

 

City Answer:  The bicycle rental locations listed in Section 2.3.A.1 and 2 of the 

RFP have access to electrical power.  Despite the first sentence of Section 3.9.2 of the 

RFP regarding charges and fees for utility service, the Concessionaire may use electrical 

service at each bicycle rental location listed in Section 2.3 of the RFP at no charge, but 

the Concessionaire shall pay for all needed cables and connections.  The City does not 

guarantee that any additional bicycle rental locations will have access to electrical 

service, and the City does not guarantee that it will be able to provide electrical service at 

those locations at no cost to the Concessionaire.  

 

Question No. 14:  What are the lease terms between the Trolley Car Café and its bicycle 

rental operator?  What are the lease terms between the Trolley Car Café and the City?    

 

City Answer:  The bicycle rental operator at the Trolley Car Café has a three-

year license with the operator of the Café that expires at the conclusion of the 

2012 bicycle rental season.  The operator of the Trolley Car Café has a lease 

agreement with the Fairmount Park Historic Preservation Trust, a private, 

nonprofit corporation.  The initial ten-year term of the lease expires in 2018; it 

may be renewed for an additional ten years.  

 

Question No. 15:  Will the City allow rental kiosks large enough to enable the 

Concessionaire to sell merchandise and store tools for bicycle repairs?  

 

City Answer:  The City will entertain Proposals for kiosks with room for 

merchandise retail sales and bicycle repairs.  Kiosks and all other capital 

improvements to the Licensed Facilities are subject to Sections 3.8 and 3.18 of the 

RFP.  The Concessionaire shall not install kiosks or any capital improvements 

outside the limits of the Licensed Facilities.  As an alternative to kiosks, the 

Concessionaire may provide repairs and store tools in storage containers the 

Concessionaire provides for its operation of the Concession.   

 

Question No. 16:  If the Concessionaire found a particular bicycle rental location was not 

viable, including Three Parkway Plaza, JFK Plaza or Lloyd Hall, would the City permit 

the Concessionaire to vacate the bicycle rental location and/or operate at a different 

location?  

 

City Answer:  If after one year of operation the Concessionaire demonstrates that 

one of its initial bicycle rental locations is not viable, the Concessionaire may 

propose one or more alternative bicycle rental locations, but the Concessionaire 

shall at all times operate at least two bicycle rental locations.  The City may 

approve or disapprove each of the Concessionaire’s proposed alternative locations 

in the City’s sole discretion.  
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__________________________________, 2011  
 

 

I have carefully read Addendum No. 1 to the Request for Proposals for Operation and 

Management of Bicycle Rental Stations in the Fairmount Park System, and I certify that I 

have received all pages and exhibits listed in Addendum No. 1.  

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________  

Name of Respondent  

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________  

Signature of Individual or Authorized signer  

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________  

Printed Name and Title of signer 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBITA.1 

 

 

GREATER PHILADELPHIA DOMESTIC TOURISM INFORMATION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Overnight 
Business

Overnight 
Leisure

Day 
Business

Day 
Leisure

Overnight 
Visitors

Day 
Visitors Business Leisure

Total 
Domestic 
Visitors

1997 1.39 7.30 2.48 15.50 8.69 17.97 3.87 22.79 26.66
1998 1.42 8.25 2.09 15.71 9.67 17.80 3.50 23.97 27.47
1999 1.26 8.19 2.49 15.39 9.45 17.88 3.75 23.58 27.33
2000 1.48 8.11 2.56 16.21 9.59 18.76 4.04 24.32 28.35
2001 1.39 8.11 2.37 15.87 9.50 18.24 3.76 23.98 27.74
2002 1.46 9.35 2.30 16.54 10.81 18.84 3.76 25.89 29.65
2003 1.54 10.08 2.28 19.11 11.61 21.39 3.81 29.19 33.00
2004 1.87 11.14 2.28 19.27 13.01 21.55 4.15 30.41 34.56
2005 2.02 11.85 2.30 20.03 13.87 22.33 4.31 31.88 36.19
2006 2.01 11.65 2.48 20.04 13.66 22.52 4.49 31.69 36.17
2007 2.01 11.79 2.49 20.51 13.80 23.00 4.51 32.30 36.80
2008 1.89 11.56 2.44 20.83 13.45 23.27 4.34 32.39 36.72
2009 1.80 11.35 2.36 20.50 13.14 22.87 4.16 31.85 36.01
2010 1.93 12.50 2.41 20.58 14.43 22.99 4.34 33.08 37.42

TOTAL 23.5 141.2 33.3 256.1 164.7 289.4 56.8 397.3 454.1
Growth 39% 71% -3% 33% 66% 28% 12% 45% 40%

Overnight 
Business

Overnight 
Leisure

Day 
Business

Day 
Leisure

Overnight 
Visitors

Day 
Visitors Business Leisure

Total 
Domestic 
Visitors

1997
1998 2% 13% -16% 1% 11% -1% -10% 5% 3%
1999 -11% -1% 19% -2% -2% 0% 7% -2% 0%
2000 18% -1% 3% 5% 1% 5% 8% 3% 4%
2001 -6% 0% -7% -2% -1% -3% -7% -1% -2%
2002 5% 15% -3% 4% 14% 3% 0% 8% 7%
2003 5% 8% -1% 16% 7% 14% 2% 13% 11%
2004 21% 11% 0% 1% 12% 1% 9% 4% 5%
2005 8% 6% 1% 4% 7% 4% 4% 5% 5%
2006 0% -2% 8% 0% -2% 1% 4% -1% 0%
2007 0% 1% 1% 2% 1% 2% 0% 2% 2%
2008 -6% -2% -2% 2% -3% 1% -4% 0% 0%
2009 -5% -2% -3% -2% -2% -2% -4% -2% -2%
2010 7% 10% 2% 0% 10% 1% 4% 4% 4%

Growth 39% 71% -3% 33% 66% 28% 12% 45% 40%

Sources: Longwoods International, Tourism Economics

Visitor Volume Estimates (in millions)

Annual Growth Rates

Domestic Visits to Greater Philadelphia by Market Segment



Visitor Volume Explanation 

 

 

Visitor volume is provided by Longwoods International based on survey data from their 

TravelUSA national panel. Over the course of the year, Longwoods surveys more than 100,000 

U.S. travelers to determine their travel activity over the previous quarter. Data collected includes 

destinations visited, length of trip, travel spending, and more. That data is then weighted to 

represent the U.S. population, and used to produce an estimate of visitation to Greater 

Philadelphia (and other destinations) on an annual basis. For more information please visit 

Longwoods International research webpage at:  

http://www.longwoods-intl.com/research/travel-tourism/ 
 

 

http://www.longwoods-intl.com/research/travel-tourism/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBITA.2 

 

 

GREATER PHILADELPHIA INTERNATIONAL TOURISM INFORMATION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PCVB DASHBOARD REPORT– June 2011 
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 For countries where there was no spend on SEM or in Facebook, interna-

tional visitation increased by 3% from 2009-2010. 
 

 For countries with a constant SEM buy, international visitation increased 

by 44% from 2009-2010. 
 

 For countries with both a constant SEM buy and a Facebook page,         

international visitation increased by 61% from 2009-2010. 



International Tourism Statistics Explanation 

 

 

International tourism statistics are provided by the United States Department of Commerce, 

Office of Travel & Tourism Industries (“OTTI”) based on survey data from their Visitor Arrival 

Program. The program surveys international air travel to the United States through “I-94 forms” 

completed by international visitors. The I-94 form highlights overseas visitor arrivals by country 

of residence, ports of entry, mode of transportation, type of visa, and other information. For more 

information please visit the OTTI’s main website at: 

http://tinet.ita.doc.gov/  

 

Please note that the data provided in the charts above only reflect international visitors that come 

to Philadelphia by air. Furthermore, OTTI does not collect survey data for international trips 

from Mexico or Canada to the United States and therefore such information is not provided in 

the charts above.  

 

http://tinet.ita.doc.gov/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBITA.3 

 

 

LIST OF ATTENDEES FOR THE PRE-PROPOSAL MEETING 

 

 

 

 

 








